

CHAPTER 163

[Substitute House Bill No. 762]

STATE COMMISSIONS, BOARDS, COUNCILS—ABOLISHMENT, TRANSFER OF POWERS

AN ACT Relating to state government; amending section 7, chapter 149, Laws of 1979 and RCW 28A.41.412; amending section 28B.20.402, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.20.402; amending section 28B.20.412, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 8, chapter 62, Laws of 1973 and RCW 28B.20.412; amending section 6, chapter 209, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 27, chapter 3, Laws of 1981 and RCW 41.26.060; amending section 4, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.19.570; amending section 10, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 102, chapter 151, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.19.600; amending section 5, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 169, Laws of 1980 and RCW 43.41.130; amending section 2, chapter 169, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 128, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 46.08.066; amending section 20, chapter 87, Laws of 1980 and RCW 43.03.028; adding a new section to chapter 2.10 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 41.26 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 41.32 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 41.40 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 41.50 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 43.19 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 43.22 RCW; adding a new section to chapter 43.43 RCW; creating new sections; repealing section 5, chapter 267, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 2.10.050; repealing section 6, chapter 267, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 2.10.060; repealing section 2, chapter 85, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.41.260; repealing section 17, chapter 130, Laws of 1943 and RCW 38.12.040; repealing section 18, chapter 130, Laws of 1943 and RCW 38.12.050; repealing section 5, chapter 209, Laws of 1969 ex. sess., section 3, chapter 6, Laws of 1970 ex. sess., section 7, chapter 257, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 4, chapter 131, Laws of 1972 ex. sess., section 2, chapter 120, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 41.26.050; repealing section 4, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 1, chapter 17, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.040; repealing section 5, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.050; repealing section 6, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 89, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.060; repealing section 7, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 2, chapter 150, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.070; repealing section 8, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.080; repealing section 9, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.090; repealing section 10, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 150, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.100; repealing section 3, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 2, chapter 291, Laws of 1961, section 2, chapter 174, Laws of 1963, section 3, chapter 271, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 3, chapter 190, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess., section 1, chapter 195, Laws of 1974 ex. sess., section 1, chapter 34, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 41.40.030; repealing section 4, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 291, Laws of 1961, section 3, chapter 174, Laws of 1963 and RCW 41.40.040; repealing section 5, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 90, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.40.050; repealing section 6, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 240, Laws of 1949, section 4, chapter 174, Laws of 1963 and RCW 41.40.060; repealing section 6, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess., section 93, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.19.580; adding a new section to chapter 43.21E RCW; repealing section 43.22.280, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 84, chapter 154, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess., section 4, chapter 16, Laws of 1973 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.280; repealing section 43.31.090, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 1, chapter 292, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess., section 108, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.090; repealing section 43.31.100, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.100; repealing section 7, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.950; repealing section 8, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.952; repealing section 9, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.954; repealing section 43.43.140, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.140; repealing section 43.43.150, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.150; repealing section 43.43.160, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.160; repealing section 43.51.520, chapter 8,

Laws of 1965, section 2, chapter 96, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.51.520; repealing section 1, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.010; repealing section 2, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.020; repealing section 3, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.030; repealing section 4, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.040; repealing section 5, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.050; repealing section 6, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.900; repealing section 1, chapter 307, Laws of 1955 and RCW 43.96.010 (decodified); repealing section 2, chapter 307, Laws of 1955, section 1, chapter 15, Laws of 1957, section 1, chapter 109, Laws of 1959, section 5, chapter 152, Laws of 1961 and RCW 43.96.020 (decodified); repealing section 3, chapter 307, Laws of 1955, section 2, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.030 (decodified); repealing section 3, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.040 (decodified); repealing section 4, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.050 (decodified); repealing section 2, chapter 109, Laws of 1959 and RCW 43.96.060 (decodified); repealing section 1, chapter 129, Laws of 1961 and RCW 43.96.070 (decodified); repealing section 4, chapter 1, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.040; repealing section 5, chapter 1, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.050; repealing section 7, chapter 3, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.130; repealing section 7, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 (uncodified); repealing section 1, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified); repealing section 2, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified); repealing section 3, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified); repealing section 41, chapter 99, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.131.229; repealing section 83, chapter 99, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.131.230; repealing section 13, chapter 49, Laws of 1974 ex. sess., section 163, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.106.130; and providing an effective date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

NEW SECTION. Section 1. There is added to chapter 2.10 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The Washington judicial retirement board established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the director of retirement systems.

Sec. 2. Section 7, chapter 149, Laws of 1979 and RCW 28A.41.412 are each amended to read as follows:

The remediation program provided for in RCW 28A.41.400 through 28A.41.410 shall constitute an integral portion of the state urban, rural, racial and disadvantaged program provided for in RCW 28A.41.250 through 28A.41.290, but shall not be subject to the provisions of RCW (~~28A.41-260 through~~) 28A.41.270 and 28A.41.280.

Sec. 3. Section 28B.20.402, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 28B.20.402 are each amended to read as follows:

The management and control of such institute shall be vested in a director appointed by the board of regents of the University of Washington (~~and an advisory board of not more than seven members to be appointed by the president of the university from the faculty thereof~~).

Sec. 4. Section 28B.20.412, chapter 223, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as amended by section 8, chapter 62, Laws of 1973 and RCW 28B.20.412 are each amended to read as follows:

The center shall be administered by the board of regents of the University of Washington (~~with the assistance of a nonsalaried advisory committee consisting of the dean of the school of medicine of the University of~~

~~Washington, the assistant secretaries for the divisions of health services, social services, service delivery, and vocational rehabilitation services of the department of social and health services, the superintendent of public instruction, and three other members approved by the president of the University of Washington)).~~

NEW SECTION. Sec. 5. There is added to chapter 41.26 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The Washington law enforcement officers' and fire fighters' retirement board established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the director of retirement systems.

Sec. 6. Section 6, chapter 209, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. as last amended by section 27, chapter 3, Laws of 1981 and RCW 41.26.060 are each amended to read as follows:

The administration of this system is hereby vested in the ~~((board of the Washington public employees'))~~ director of retirement systems ~~((pursuant to RCW 41.26.050))~~, and the ~~((board))~~ director shall:

(1) Keep in convenient form such data as shall be deemed necessary for actuarial evaluation purposes;

(2) As of March 1, 1970, and at least every two years thereafter, through its actuary, make an actuarial valuation as to the mortality and service experience of the beneficiaries under this chapter and the various accounts created for the purpose of showing the financial status of the retirement fund;

(3) Adopt for the retirement system the mortality tables and such other tables as shall be deemed necessary;

(4) Keep a record of all its proceedings, which shall be open to inspection by the public;

(5) From time to time adopt such rules and regulations not inconsistent with this chapter, for the administration of the provisions of this chapter, for the administration of the fund created by this chapter and the several accounts thereof, and for the transaction of the business of the ~~((board))~~ system;

(6) Prepare and publish annually a financial statement showing the condition of the fund and the various accounts thereof, and setting forth such other facts, recommendations and data as may be of use in the advancement of knowledge concerning the Washington law enforcement officers' and fire fighters' retirement system, and furnish a copy thereof to each employer, and to such members as may request copies thereof;

~~((7) ((Serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for expense incident to service as individual members thereof;~~

~~((8)))~~ Perform such other functions as are required for the execution of the provisions of this chapter;

~~((9) No member of the board shall be liable for the negligence, default or failure of any employee or of any other member of the board to perform~~

~~the duties of his office and no member of the board shall be considered or held to be an insurer of the funds or assets of the retirement system but shall be liable only for his own personal default or individual failure to perform his duties as such member and to exercise reasonable diligence in providing for the safeguarding of the funds and assets of the system;~~

~~(10))~~ (8) Fix the amount of interest to be credited at a rate which shall be based upon the net annual earnings of the fund for the preceding twelve-month period and from time to time make any necessary changes in such rate;

~~((11))~~ (9) Pay from the department of retirement systems expense fund the expenses incurred in administration of the retirement system from those funds appropriated for that purpose;

~~((12))~~ (10) Perform any other duties prescribed elsewhere in this chapter ~~((: PROVIDED, That all disability claims shall be submitted and approved or disapproved by the disability boards established by this chapter and the retirement board shall have authority to approve or disapprove disability retirement requests only));~~

~~((13))~~ (11) Issue decisions relating to appeals initiated pursuant to RCW 41.16.145 and 41.18.104 as now or hereafter mended and shall be authorized to order increased benefits pursuant to RC ' 41.16.145 and 41.18.104 as now or hereafter amended.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 7. There is added to chapter 41.32 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The retirement board (or board of trustees) established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the director of retirement systems.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 8. There is added to chapter 41.40 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The retirement board established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the director of retirement systems.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 9. There is added to chapter 41.50 RCW a new section to read as follows:

(1) The director shall assume all powers, duties, and functions of the retirement boards abolished by sections 1, 5, 7, 8, and 18 of this act except as otherwise assigned in this section.

(2) There is hereby created a state advisory committee to the department of retirement systems which shall serve in an advisory capacity to the director of retirement systems. The committee shall consist of twelve members appointed by the governor as provided in this section:

(a) Three active members and one retired member of the public employees' retirement system;

(b) Two active members, one a law enforcement officer and the other a fire fighter, and one retired fire fighter, of the law enforcement officers' and fire fighters' retirement system;

(c) Two active members, one a teacher and the other an administrator, and one retired member of the teachers' retirement system;

(d) One active member of the state patrol retirement system;

(e) One active member of the judicial retirement system.

The active members appointed under subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of this subsection shall be selected from a list of three nominees submitted by each organization representing active members. The retired members appointed under subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this subsection shall be selected from a list of three nominees submitted by each organization representing retired members. The member appointed under subsection (e) of this subsection shall be appointed from a list of three nominees submitted by the state supreme court.

Members shall serve staggered three-year terms as determined by the governor. Members shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for travel expenses in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060 as now existing or hereafter amended.

(3) The advisory committee shall at its first meeting of each fiscal year elect a chairperson and vice chairperson.

(4) The chairperson shall annually appoint from the committee members a subcommittee for each retirement system covered by this chapter. Each subcommittee shall have one committee member representing the system for which appointed and two other committee members who represent any other system. The subcommittees shall meet upon the call of the director to review all disability appeals cases which have been heard by a hearings examiner. Having considered the report of the hearings examiner and all other legally pertinent material, the subcommittee shall make a recommendation to the director for the disposition of the appeal.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 10. There is added to chapter 43.19 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The automotive policy board established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the department of general administration.

Sec. 11. Section 4, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 43.19.570 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department shall direct and be responsible for the acquisition, operation, maintenance, storage, repair, and replacement of state motor vehicles under its control. The department shall utilize state facilities available for the maintenance, repair, and storage of such motor vehicles, and may provide directly or by contract for the maintenance, repair, and servicing of all motor vehicles, and other property related thereto and under its control;

(2) The department may arrange, by agreement with agencies, for the utilization by one of the storage, repair, or maintenance facilities of another, with such provision for charges and credits as may be agreed upon. ~~((Any such agreement shall be subject to the approval of the automotive policy board established pursuant to RCW 43.19.580.))~~ The department may acquire and maintain storage, repair, and maintenance facilities for the motor vehicles under its control from such funds as may be appropriated by the legislature.

Sec. 12. Section 10, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 102, chapter 151, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.19.600 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) On or after July 1, 1975, any passenger motor vehicles currently owned or hereafter acquired by any state agency, except vehicles acquired from federal granted funds and over which the federal government retains jurisdiction and control, may be purchased by or transferred to the department of general administration with the consent of the state agency concerned. The director of general administration may accept vehicles subject to the provisions of RCW 43.19.560 through 43.19.630, 43.41.130 and 43.41.140 prior to July 1, 1975, if he deems it expedient to accomplish an orderly transition.

(2) The department, in cooperation with the office of financial management, shall study and ascertain current and prospective needs of state agencies for passenger motor vehicles and shall recommend transfer to a state motor pool or other appropriate disposition of any vehicle found not to be required by a state agency.

(3) The ~~((automotive policy board))~~ department shall direct the transfer of passenger motor vehicles from a state agency to a state motor pool or other disposition as appropriate, based on a study under subsection (2) of this section, or after a public hearing held by the department, if a finding is made based on testimony and data therein submitted that the economy, efficiency, or effectiveness of state government would be improved by such a transfer or other disposition of passenger motor vehicles. Any dispute over the accuracy of testimony and data submitted as to the benefits in state governmental economy, efficiency, and effectiveness to be gained by such transfer shall be resolved by ~~((a majority vote of the automotive policy board established by RCW 43.19.580))~~ the governor or the governor's designee.

Sec. 13. Section 5, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as last amended by section 1, chapter 169, Laws of 1980 and RCW 43.41.130 are each amended to read as follows:

The director of financial management, after consultation with other interested or affected state agencies ~~((and approval of the automotive policy~~

~~board established pursuant to RCW 43.19.580~~)), shall establish overall policies governing the acquisition, operation, management, maintenance, repair, and disposal of, all passenger motor vehicles owned or operated by any state agency. Such policies shall include but not be limited to a definition of what constitutes authorized use of a state owned or controlled passenger motor vehicle and other motor vehicles on official state business. The definition shall include, but not be limited to, the use of state-owned motor vehicles for commuter ride sharing so long as the entire capital depreciation and operational expense of the commuter ride-sharing arrangement is paid by the commuters. Any use other than such defined use shall be considered as personal use.

Such policies shall also include the widest possible use of gasohol and cost-effective alternative fuels in all motor vehicles owned or operated by any state agency. As used in this section, "gasohol" means motor vehicle fuel which contains more than nine and one-half percent alcohol by volume.

Sec. 14. Section 2, chapter 169, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. as amended by section 128, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 46.08.066 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Except as provided in subsection (3) of this section, the department of licensing is authorized to issue confidential motor vehicle license plates to units of local government and to agencies of the federal government for law enforcement purposes only.

(2) Except as provided in subsections (3) and (4) of this section the use of confidential plates on vehicles owned or operated by the state of Washington by any officer or employee thereof, shall be limited to confidential, investigative, or undercover work of state law enforcement agencies, confidential public health work, and confidential public assistance fraud or support investigations.

(3) Any state official elected on a state-wide basis shall be provided on request with one set of confidential plates for use on official business. When necessary for the personal security of any other public officer, or public employee, the chief of the Washington state patrol may recommend that the director issue confidential plates for use on an unmarked publicly owned or controlled vehicle of the appropriate governmental unit for the conduct of official business for the period of time that the personal security of such state official, public officer, or other public employee may require. The office of the state treasurer may use an unmarked state owned or controlled vehicle with confidential plates where required for the safe transportation of either state funds or negotiable securities to or from the office of the state treasurer.

(4) The director of licensing (~~(, with the approval of the automotive policy board established pursuant to RCW 43.19.580;)~~) may issue rules and regulations governing applications for, and the use of, such plates by law

enforcement and other public agencies. The legislative auditor shall periodically examine or require filing of a current listing of the total number of such plates issued to any law enforcement or other public agency. Reports on the utilization of such plates shall be submitted to the legislative budget committee and to the legislature.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 15. There is added to chapter 43.21E RCW a new section to read as follows:

Notwithstanding RCW 43.21E.900, within thirty days or after the effective date of this 1982 act, the director shall reactivate the grass burning research advisory committee by appointing new members to the committee. The provisions of this chapter, other than RCW 43.21E.900, shall apply to the reactivated committee.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 16. There is added to chapter 43.22 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The industrial welfare committee established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the committee are transferred to the director of labor and industries.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 17. The department of commerce and economic development advisory council established by RCW 43.31.090 is abolished.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 18. There is added to chapter 43.43 RCW a new section to read as follows:

The retirement board established by this chapter is abolished. All powers, duties, and functions of the board are transferred to the director of retirement systems.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 19. The youth development and conservation committee established by RCW 43.51.520 is abolished.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 20. The oceanographic commission established by RCW 43.94.020 is abolished.

Sec. 21. Section 20, chapter 87, Laws of 1980 and RCW 43.03.028 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) There is hereby created a state committee on salaries to consist of seven members, or their designees, as follows: The president of the University of Puget Sound; the president of Washington State University; the chairperson of the State Personnel Board; the president of the Association of Washington Business; the president of the Pacific Northwest Personnel Managers' Association; the president of the Washington State Bar Association; and the president of the Washington State Labor Council. If any of the titles or positions mentioned in this subsection are changed or abolished, any person occupying an equivalent or like position shall be qualified for appointment by the governor to membership upon the committee.

(2) The committee shall study the duties and salaries of the directors of the several departments and the members of the several boards and commissions of state government, who are subject to appointment by the governor or whose salaries are fixed by the governor, and of the chief executive officers of the following agencies of state government:

The arts commission; the human rights commission; the board of accountancy; the board of pharmacy; the capitol historical association and museum; the eastern Washington historical society; the Washington state historical society; the interagency committee for outdoor recreation; the criminal justice training commission; (~~the oceanographic commission;~~) the department of personnel; the state finance committee; the state library; the traffic safety commission; the horse racing commission; the commission for vocational education; the advisory council on vocational education; the public disclosure commission; the hospital commission; the state conservation commission; the commission on Mexican-American affairs; the commission on Asian-American affairs; the state board for volunteer firemen; the urban arterial board; the data processing authority; the public employees relations commission; the forest practices appeals board; and the energy facilities site evaluation council.

The committee shall report to the governor or the chairperson of the appropriate salary fixing authority at least once in each fiscal biennium on such date as the governor may designate, but not later than seventy-five days prior to the convening of each regular session of the legislature during an odd-numbered year, its recommendations for the salaries to be fixed for each position.

(3) The committee shall also make a study of the duties and salaries of all state elective officials, including members of the supreme, appellate, superior, and district courts and members of the legislature and report to the governor and the president of the senate and the speaker of the house not later than sixty days prior to the convening of each regular session of the legislature during an odd-numbered year its recommendation for the salaries to be established for each position. Copies of the committee report to the governor shall be provided to the appropriate standing committees of the house and senate upon request.

(4) Committee members shall be reimbursed by the department of personnel for travel expenses under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 22. The technical advisory committee for the Washington Poison Prevention Packaging Act established by RCW 70.106-.130 is abolished.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 23. The following acts or parts of acts are each repealed:

- (1) Section 5, chapter 267, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 2.10.050;
- (2) Section 6, chapter 267, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 2.10.060;
- (3) Section 2, chapter 85, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 28A.41.260;

- (4) Section 17, chapter 130, Laws of 1943 and RCW 38.12.040;
- (5) Section 18, chapter 130, Laws of 1943 and RCW 38.12.050;
- (6) Section 5, chapter 209, Laws of 1969 ex. sess., section 3, chapter 6, Laws of 1970 ex. sess., section 7, chapter 257, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 4, chapter 131, Laws of 1972 ex. sess., section 2, chapter 120, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 41.26.050;
- (7) Section 4, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 1, chapter 17, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.040;
- (8) Section 5, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.050;
- (9) Section 6, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 89, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.060;
- (10) Section 7, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 2, chapter 150, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.070;
- (11) Section 8, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.080;
- (12) Section 9, chapter 80, Laws of 1947 and RCW 41.32.090;
- (13) Section 10, chapter 80, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 150, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 41.32.100;
- (14) Section 3, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 2, chapter 291, Laws of 1961, section 2, chapter 174, Laws of 1963, section 3, chapter 271, Laws of 1971 ex. sess., section 3, chapter 190, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess., section 1, chapter 195, Laws of 1974 ex. sess., section 1, chapter 34, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. and RCW 41.40.030;
- (15) Section 4, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 291, Laws of 1961, section 3, chapter 174, Laws of 1963 and RCW 41.40.040;
- (16) Section 5, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 90, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 41.40.050;
- (17) Section 6, chapter 274, Laws of 1947, section 3, chapter 240, Laws of 1949, section 4, chapter 174, Laws of 1963 and RCW 41.40.060;
- (18) Section 6, chapter 167, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess., section 93, chapter 158, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.19.580;
- (19) Section 43.22.280, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 84, chapter 154, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess., section 4, chapter 16, Laws of 1973 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.22.280;
- (20) Section 43.31.090, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 1, chapter 292, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess., section 108, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.090;
- (21) Section 43.31.100, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.31.100;
- (22) Section 7, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.950;
- (23) Section 8, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.952;
- (24) Section 9, chapter 197, Laws of 1979 ex. sess. and RCW 43.31.954;
- (25) Section 43.43.140, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.140;

- (26) Section 43.43.150, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.150;
- (27) Section 43.43.160, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 and RCW 43.43.160;
- (28) Section 43.51.520, chapter 8, Laws of 1965, section 2, chapter 96, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 43.51.520;
- (29) Section 1, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.010;
- (30) Section 2, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.020;
- (31) Section 3, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.030;
- (32) Section 4, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.040;
- (33) Section 5, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.050;
- (34) Section 6, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 and RCW 43.94.900;
- (35) Section 7, chapter 243, Laws of 1967 (uncodified);
- (36) Section 1, chapter 307, Laws of 1955 and RCW 43.96.010 (decodified);
- (37) Section 2, chapter 307, Laws of 1955, section 1, chapter 15, Laws of 1957, section 1, chapter 109, Laws of 1959, section 5, chapter 152, Laws of 1961 and RCW 43.96.020 (decodified);
- (38) Section 3, chapter 307, Laws of 1955, section 2, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.030 (decodified);
- (39) Section 3, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.040 (decodified);
- (40) Section 4, chapter 15, Laws of 1957 and RCW 43.96.050 (decodified);
- (41) Section 2, chapter 109, Laws of 1959 and RCW 43.96.060 (decodified);
- (42) Section 1, chapter 129, Laws of 1961 and RCW 43.96.070 (decodified);
- (43) Section 4, chapter 1, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.040;
- (44) Section 5, chapter 1, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.050;
- (45) Section 7, chapter 3, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.96B.130;
- (46) Section 1, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified);
- (47) Section 2, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified);
- (48) Section 3, chapter 315, Laws of 1977 ex. sess. (uncodified);
- (49) Section 41, chapter 99, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.131.229;
- (50) Section 83, chapter 99, Laws of 1979 and RCW 43.131.230; and
- (51) Section 13, chapter 49, Laws of 1974 ex. sess., section 163, chapter 34, Laws of 1975-'76 2nd ex. sess. and RCW 70.106.130.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 24. If any provision of this act or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 25. This act shall take effect June 30, 1982.

Passed the House March 9, 1982.

Passed the Senate March 3, 1982.

Approved by the Governor April 1, 1982.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State April 1, 1982.

CHAPTER 164

[Substitute House Bill No. 1024]

SHELTERED WORKSHOPS, DAYTRAINING CENTERS, GROUP TRAINING HOMES—PRINTING SERVICES

AN ACT Relating to sheltered workshops; amending section 43.78.030, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 114, chapter 81, Laws of 1971 and RCW 43.78.030; amending section 43.78.110, chapter 8, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 1, chapter 79, Laws of 1969 and RCW 43.78.110; adding a new section to chapter 43.19 RCW; and providing an expiration date.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington :

NEW SECTION. Section 1. There is added to chapter 43.19 RCW a new section to read as follows:

(1) State agencies and departments shall purchase printing, related trade services, and total copy system services for projects under two hundred dollars directly from day training centers and group training homes as defined in RCW 72.33.800 or sheltered workshops as defined in RCW 82.04.385, if the agencies or departments are located within a reasonable distance from the sheltered workshops, training centers, or group training homes. State agencies and departments may purchase microfilming and related services from day training centers, group training homes or sheltered workshops. All microfilming and related services purchased under this section shall be purchased at a price equal to or less than the fair market value. Total copy system services offered by such centers, homes, and sheltered workshops shall not replace the use by agencies and departments of in-house convenience copiers, in-house printing and binding facilities, or in-place total copy systems. All printing services and related trade services purchased under this section shall be purchased at a price equal to or less than the fair market value as determined by the standard trade pricing manuals. Copy services shall be purchased at a price equal to or less than the competitive price that is standard in the county. Such homes, centers, or sheltered workshops shall only accept work for which they can provide normal quality in a reasonable time period. All the work that such home, center, or sheltered workshop contracts to do shall be performed at the home's or center's facility or at the sheltered workshop and not by any other printing company. State agencies and departments shall purchase from other authorized sources when the service cannot be supplied by such homes,